I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER AND INTRODUCTION 

Petitioner/Defendant the City of Tacoma ("Tacoma") seeks review 

under RAP 13.4(b)(l), (2), and (4). This case presents significant 

recurring legal questions regarding the condemnation of riparian rights, 

the application of res judicata, and the resolution of cross motions for 

summary judgment. 

This Court has repeatedly recognized the importance of finality for 

judgments determining real property rights. In 1921, in City of Tacoma v. 

Funk, Tacoma condemned and acquired all the land parcels and other real 

property rights required to build and operate two hydroelectric dams on 

the North Fork of the Skokomish River. Plaintiffs ("the Richerts") are the 

current owners of land located downstream from the dams. Under the 

final judgment in Funk, Tacoma compensated the Richerts' predecessors 

for the reduction in the value of their real property caused by taking some 

of the rights attached to their land, including all riparian rights. These 

riparian rights include the right to control the water level in the river 

channel. De Ruwe v. Morrison, 28 Wn.2d 797, 808, 184 P.2d 273 (1947). 

Since 1924, the City has diverted most of the waters of the North 

Fork for hydroelectric power generation, with flow levels varying over the 

years. Beginning in 1988, federal and state regulators required Tacoma to 

maintain constant minimum flows in this tributary to accommodate 
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endangered fish species. In 2010, the Richerts sued Tacoma, seeking 

additional compensation for damage to the value of their properties 

allegedly caused by the level of water flowing in the channel. The Court 

of Appeals rejected Tacoma's res judicata defense as a matter of law, 

ruling that in Funk Tacoma "condemned only the right to deprive the 

parcel owners of their ability to use water." Richert v. Tacoma Power 

Utility,_ Wn. App. _, 319 P.3d 882,888-90 (2014). This Court should 

accept review for three reasons: 

First, the Court of Appeals' ruling conflicts with established case 

law regarding the scope of riparian rights. Riparian rights are not limited 

to water use, and the Richerts may not sue Tacoma for its lawful exercise 

of property rights the City already paid to acquire. Because the Court of 

Appeals' ruling threatens established property rights and jeopardizes 

utility operations throughout the state, this Court should accept review 

under RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (4). 

Second, in determining the res judicata effect of the prior 

judgment, the Court of Appeals chose to rely on portions of selected 

pleadings in Funk referring to water use, but disregarded other parts of the 

record establishing the broad scope of Tacoma's condemnation. The 

Court of Appeals' approach conflicts with precedents including Large v. 

Shively, 186 Wash. 490, 58 P.2d 808 (1936) and its progeny. 

2 
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Third, the Court of Appeals erroneously construed the facts in the 

light most favorable to the Richerts not only for purposes ofTacoma's 

summary judgment motion, but also for the Richerts' own cross motion. 

But as this Court has held, courts resolving "cross-motions for summary 

judgment" must "take the facts in the light most favorable to the 

nonmoving party with respect to the particular claim." Anderson v. Akzo 

Nobel Coatings, Inc., 172 Wn.2d 593, 597, 260 P.3d 857 (2011) (emphasis 

added). The Court of Appeals' holding otherwise in this case (and others) 

conflicts with controlling authority, and also warrants review un~er RAP 

13.4(b)(1), (2), and (4). This Court should accept review and restore 

consistency to Washington law. 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Tacoma seeks review of the published amended opinion filed on 

May 13, 2014, by Division II of the Court of Appeals. See Appendix. 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Are the Richerts' damage claims barred by Tacoma's 
acquisition in Funk of all riparian rights attaching to their 
properties? 

2. In determining whether a claim is barred by res judicata, what 
records from the prior action should courts consider? 

3. Did the Court of Appeals erroneously conclude that ordinary 
CR 56 standards do not apply when parties file cross motions 
for summary judgment? 

3 
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Tacoma's Cushman Hydroelectric Project 

For nine decades, Tacoma has operated the Cushman 

Hydroelectric Project on the North Fork of the Skokomish River in Mason 

County, generating clean, renewable energy. CP 3647-56. The Project 

consists of two dams and related structures, which Tacoma operates under 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") licenses issued under 

the Federal Power Act. CP 3774-3973. See Fig. 1, Appx. at A-1. 

The Project was the subject ofFERC relicensing proceedings that 

began in 1974. During the relicensing process, Tacoma was required to 

maintain minimum flows into the North Fork in order to benefit 

endangered fish species. CP 3776. FERC ultimately issued a new Project 

license imposing a North Fork water flow regime that is intended to mimic 

the natural conditions ofthe North Fork of the Skokomish River. CP 

3800. Tacoma's current license requires it to release amounts up to the 

natural inflow level into the reservoir. CP 3800-02. Tacoma continues to 

divert most ofthe waters of the North Fork for power generation. 

B. Water Flow Through Land Owned By the Richerts 

The Richerts own land parcels adjacent to the Main Stem, 

beginning approximately fifteen miles below the Project. See Figure 2, 

Appx. at A-2. The Richerts' parcels are located in the floodway of the 
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Skokomish River, id., which is part ofthe river's natural watercourse. 

CP 2544. The Richerts claim that increased water levels in the floodway 

have caused damage to their properties. CP 3208. 

The river has a long history of variable flow rates within the 

floodway, including regular flooding. CP 2542-43. The Main Stem has 

much less gradient than the upper forks of the Skokomish, with a broad 

and generally flat flood plain between the valley walls, and a channel that 

has meandered since at least 1861. CP 2542. This has resulted in 

continuous erosion problems for settlers and farmers. CP 2577. 

Aggradation-the gradual buildup of river floor from sediment-has also 

occurred in the basin. CP 2572 ("the valley [has] been in an aggradational 

environment for around 2,000 years"). 

Although the parties vigorously dispute the cause ofthe Richerts' 

claimed property damage, the issue of causation is not before this Court. 

CP 95. Instead, it is undisputed that (1) Tacoma has released no more 

water into the North Fork at the dam location than would occur in the 

absence ofthe dam, CP 3800; and (2) all flows released from the Project 

have stayed within the floodway ofthe River. CP 2536-45, 2710-11. 

C. City of Tacoma v. Funk Condemnation Action 

On September 11, 1920, Tacoma initiated the Funk condemnation 

action, Mason County Sup. Ct. No. 1651, for the purpose of acquiring the 

5 
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land parcels and all other real property rights necessary for the Project's 

construction, operation, and maintenance. CP 1348-1408. 

In its Petition for Condemnation, Tacoma identified those parcels 

subject to condemnation in whole or part. A-17- 23. Funk involved two 

types of parcels: first, land that would simply be acquired by Tacoma in 

its entirety-such as upstream parcels that would be submerged by the 

newly-formed reservoirs (referred to by the Court of Appeals as "Type 

One" parcels), see, e.g., CP 3298; and second, land Tacoma did not 

acquire title to in its entirety and instead paid to take some of the bundle 

of property rights held by the landowners--compensating landowners for 

all damage to their remaining property interests. See CP 3329-31. These 

"Type Two" parcels include all ofthe properties at issue in this appeal. 

For each Type Two parcel, Tacoma sought to condemn and acquire "the 

water rights, riparian rights, easements, privileges and other facilities 

upon said river below said dam, necessary and adequate for the proper 

development, construction, operation and maintenance of [the Project]." 

A-21 (emphasis added). 

On June 1, 1921, defendant Skokomish River valley property 

owners, including some of plaintiffs' predecessors, filed a Cross

Complaint in Funk alleging their properties have "valuable riparian rights 

apertinent [sic] thereto." A-31. The owners alleged "the proposed taking 
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away ofthe riparian rights" would lower "the fair market value" of their 

property. I d. The property owners sought "compensation for any and all 

damages of every kind and nature whatsoever that will accrue to their 

said properties by reason of the doing of the things to be done by the 

plaintiff and petitioner as alleged in the complaint." A-31 - 32 (emphasis 

added). 

Also on June 1, 1921, additional Type Two landowners, including 

the predecessors of other plaintiffs in this action, filed a successful petition 

to intervene in Funk. A-33 - 44. These claimants likewise alleged that the 

proposed dam project "involves the taking away of the riparian rights" of 

intervenors, and contended that they would be "damaged in diverse and 

other ways by reason of the said proposed damming of the waters of the 

North Fork ofthe said Skokomish river." A-44. 

On September 8, 1923, the court issued a Decree of Appropriation 

awarding damages to the Type Two property owners and transferring to 

Tacoma in fee simple broad property rights, including ''the waters, water 

rights, riparian rights, easements and privileges, including the right to 

divert the waters of the North Fork of the Skokomish River." A-51 

(emphasis added). Unlike the Type One condemnees, these property 

owners retained title to the land and all other associated property rights not 

acquired by Tacoma. CP 2489. For over ninety years, the landowners and 
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their successors have enjoyed the benefit of their residual property 

interests, using the land for agricultural, recreational, and other purposes. 

CP 3203. 

D. Procedural Background 

The Richerts filed suit against Tacoma in 2010, alleging the 

existence of natural flow (or less) in the North Fork under the FERC 

License improperly raised water levels in the channel, lowering the value 

of their downstream properties. CP 4010-23. Tacoma denied that dam 

operations caused the Richerts' alleged damages, but contended that, in 

any event, the judgment in Funk barred the Richerts from asserting claims 

for additional compensation because Tacoma had already paid to acquire 

all riparian rights, including the right to vary water levels. CP 3764. 

The parties filed cross-motions for summary judgment regarding 

the impact of the Funk judgment on the Richerts' claims. See CP 3713-

40; CP 2505-35. On June 29, 2012, the superior court entered orders 

granting the Richerts' motion for summary judgment regarding Funk, and 

denying Tacoma's motion for summary judgment. CP 87-92. The court 

concluded the Funk judgment did not bar the Richerts' claims because 

their alleged damages were "not within the contemplation of the Funk 

litigants or the Funk court." RP ( 6/8/12) 7:16-17. The court entered a 

final judgment under CR 54(b) and RAP 2.2( d) solely regarding the 
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impact of Funk, CP 94-96, and Tacoma appealed. CP 52-86, CP 9-41. 

On March 4, 2014, the Court of Appeals affirmed the superior 

courts' summary judgment rulings under a different rationale than the 

superior court, concluding that "in Funk, Tacoma condemned only the 

right to deprive the parcel owners of their ability to use water." Court of 

Appeals Opinion ("Op.") at~ 36 (emphasis added). See also id. ~ 31 

("Tacoma condemned the right to take away the use of the Type Two 

parcels' water," as "evidenced by Tacoma's petition for condemnation"). 

In determining the res judicata effect ofthe Funk judgments, the Court of 

Appeal considered only portions of Tacoma's petition, not other Funk 

pleadings or the broad language of the final Decree itself. I d.; see also id. 

~ 34 n.5. 

Because the Court of Appeals' original opinion contained 

misstatements and appeared to suggest the court had resolved disputed 

factual issues, Tacoma moved for reconsideration. On May 13, 2014, the 

Court of Appeals granted Tacoma's motion in part, and issued an amended 

opinion correcting several factual misstatements. A-15. Nevertheless, the 

amended opinion in a new footnote confirmed that for purposes of both 

cross motions-Tacoma's unsuccessful motion for summary judgment 

dismissing the Richerts' claims as precluded by Funk, as well as the 

Richerts' successful motion for summary judgment striking Tacoma's res 
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judicata defense-the court had construed the facts in the light most 

favorable to the Richerts, on the ground that each motion "concerned 

whether the Richerts' claims were precluded as a matter oflaw." A-16. 

(citing Witt v. Young, 168 Wn. App. 211, 213, 275 P.3d 1218 (2012)). 

V. ARGUMENT 

A. This Court Should Grant Review to Correct the Court of 
Appeals' Mischaracterization of Riparian Rights. 

The Court of Appeals' decision conflicts with this Court's prior 

rulings concerning riparian rights. A landowner whose land bounds a 

river, stream, lake, or salt water is a "riparian" owner. Dept. of Ecology v. 

Abbott, 103 Wn.2d 686, 689, 694 P .2d 1071 (1985) (riparian rights derive 

from the ownership of land "contiguous to or traversed by a 

watercourse"). "Riparian rights" are among the bundle of specific rights 

in real property that may be separately conveyed by deed or by a 

condemnation judgment. See In Re Clinton Water Dist., 36 Wn.2d 284, 

286, 218 P.2d 309 (1950) (government seeking to interfere with riparian 

rights other than water use nevertheless must acquire rights by 

condemnation); Kalama Elec. Light & Power Co. v. Kalama Driving Co., 

48 Wash. 612, 617, 94 P. 469 (1908) (utility seeking to vary flow in 

channel must first condemn downstream property owners' riparian rights). 

Historically, riparian rights have included a priority claim to use 
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water, and thus many of this Court's prior cases involve Washington's 

evolving balance between riparian and appropriative water rights. See, 

e.g., In re Rights to Waters of Stranger Creek, 77 Wn.2d 649, 653-57, 466 

P.2d 508 (1970) (outlining history ofwater rights). But various other 

riparian rights also attach to such land parcels. In Re Clinton Water Dist., 

36 Wn.2d at 287-88 ("many rights may be exercised and enjoyed which 

have always been recognized as riparian rights"); see also Dep 't of 

Ecology, 103 Wn.2d at 697 (contrasting Washington courts' treatment of 

water use versus other riparian rights). Nevertheless, the Court of Appeals 

improperly limited its analysis to "the parcel's water use." Op. ~ 35. 

In particular, riparian rights include the right to a continuation of 

the "natural flow" of water past the riparian owner's land, "as it was wont 

to run, without diminution or alteration." Crook v. Hewitt, 4 Wash. 749, 

749-50, 31 P.28 (1892). As the Court of Appeals correctly recognized, 

"[r]iparian owners have a right to not have their water levels raised or 

lowered." Op. ~ 24 (citing De Ruwe, 28 Wn.2d at 808). See also Moodv. 

Banchero, 67 Wn.2d 835,840,410 P.2d 776 (1966) ("riparian rights" 

include authority to open outlet, "thereby lowering the lake level to its 

natural level"). The holder of riparian rights attaching to a particular 

downstream property therefore may assert claims contending that the 

property has been "damaged by the interference with the natural flow of a 

11 
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stream by an upstream owner without compensation." Marshland Flood 

Control Dist. of Snohomish Cnty. v. Great N Ry. Co., 71 Wn.2d 365, 368-

69,428 P.2d 531 (1967). See also A. DANTARLOCK, LAW OF WATER 

RIGHTS AND RESOURCES§ 3:16, at 3-28 (201 0) ("Land use alterations 

which result in a substantial increase in the natural flow of a stream and 

cause flood damage are an interference with riparian rights") (emphasis 

added). 

The "natural watercourse" subject to riparian control "has long 

been defined to include the flood channel of a stream because the flood 

channel 'is as much a natural part of[the stream] as is the ordinary 

channel."' Fitzpatrickv. Okanogan Cnty., 169 Wn.2d 598,607,238 P.3d 

1129 (2010) (citing Sund v. Keating, 43 Wn.2d 36, 43, 259 P.2d 1113 

(1953)). Flows released throughout the history of the Project have indeed 

stayed within the natural watercourse of the River, where each of the 

Richerts' parcels is located. CP 2536-45, 2710-11. The Richerts' causes 

of action thus seek damages for the alleged violation of the riparian 

property rights attached to these parcels. See, e.g., CP 3208. 

But under Funk judgment, Tacoma-not the Richerts-is the 

proprietor of the riparian rights attached to these downstream properties 

along the Main Stem. Tacoma acquired from plaintiffs' predecessors not 

just their "water rights," but also all of''the ... riparian rights . .. 
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appertaining and appurtenant to [plaintiffs'] lands, real estate and 

premises." A-51 (emphasis added). Tacoma's condemnation of all 

riparian rights attached to plaintiffs' property necessarily includes the right 

to vary the water flow past the property without further compensation. De 

Ruwe, 28 Wn.2d at 805; Marshland Flood, 71 Wn.2d at 368. 

The Court of Appeals erroneously allowed the Richerts to seek 

damages for the alleged invasion of riparian rights they do not own. See, 

e.g., Lakewood Racquet Club, Inc. v. Jensen, 156 Wn. App. 215, 232 P.3d 

114 7 (20 1 0) (claim barred because plaintiff did not own property right at 

issue). This Court.should accept review ofthe Court of Appeals' water 

law ruling under RAP 13.4(b)(l) and (4) because the Court of Appeals' 

decision conflicts with established Washington law on a matter of public 

importance, effecting every hydroelectric facility in Washington. 

B. The Court of Appeals' Res Judicata Decision Conflicts With 
Prior Case Law and Presents an Issue of Substantial Public 
Interest. 

This appeal is limited to the superior court's summary judgment 

rulings on Tacoma's res judicata defense. CP 94-95. Under longstanding 

Washington law, the party arguing a claim that was previously adjudicated 

has the burden of pleading and proving the "record in the prior action." 

Lemond v. Dep 't of Licensing, 143 Wn. App. 797, 806, 180 P.3d 829 (Div. 

1 2008) (citing Bodeneck v. Cater's Motor Freight Sys., Inc., 198 Wash. 
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. . 

21, 29, 86 P.2d 766 (1939)). In applying the equitable doctrine of res 

judicata, courts determine the legal significance of this record. See, e.g., 

Atlantic Cas. Ins. Co. v. Oregon Mut. Ins. Co., 137 Wn. App. 296, 302, 

153 P.3d 211 (2007). As this Court held in Large v. Shively, when parties 

dispute the application of res judicata, the issue "must be determined by 

the evidence thereon," including "the pleadings and counsel's statements" 

in the prior action. 186 Wash. at 491, 497. See also Marshall v. 

Chapman's Estate, 31 Wn.2d 137, 139-40, 195 P.2d 656 (1948) (res 

judicata defense determined by examining "entire file" in prior action). 

In this case, the Court of Appeals' rejection of Tacoma's res 

judicata defense as a matter oflaw relied on only a portion of Tacoma's 

petition in Funk: the court held that the City's statement '"the volume of 

water in said river below said dam will be diminished' ... shows that 

Tacoma sought only the right to deprive the Type Two parcels below the 

dam of their use of the main stem's water." Op. ~ 33 (citing CP 1382). 

According to the Court of Appeals, the two cases involve different subject 

matters and causes of action because "Tacoma condemned only the right 

to deprive the parcel owners of their ability to use water, as revealed by 

Tacoma's petition." Op. ~ 36 (emphasis added); see also id. ~ 35 ("Funk's 

final judgment dealt with only deprivation of the parcels' water use") 

(emphasis added). 

14 
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But as discussed in the previous section, Tacoma condemned not 

only the landowners' "water rights," but also all the "riparian rights" 

attached to these properties. Contrary to the Court of Appeals' 

misstatement, Tacoma's petition in Funk on its face was not limited to 

acquiring "the parcel's water use." Op. ~ 35. Rather, Tacoma's petition 

broadly sought all rights necessary for operating the Project, including 

"riparian rights." A-21. The Court of Appeals also ignores language in 

the final Funk judgment vesting in Tacoma all riparian rights, A -51, as 

well as jury instructions describing the scope of the riparian rights 

acquired and the measure of damages awarded. A-46 (damages intended 

to compensate for any depreciation in property value, including from 

"taking of any portion of the water") (emphasis added). Moreover, the 

Court of Appeals expressly refused to consider the landowners' own 

pleadings in Funk, Op. ~ 34 n.5-even though the Richerts' predecessors 

successfully sought compensation for "any and all damages of every kind 

and nature whatsoever," including the depreciation in the "fair market 

value oftheir said premises" from "the proposed taking away of the 

riparian rights therefrom." A-31-32, A-43-44. 

According to the Court of Appeals, "random filings from various

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