RECEIVED  
SUPREME COURT  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  
Jul 11, 2014, 11:36 am  
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER  
CLERK

Case No. 90405 - 7

---

SUPREME COURT  
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

---

E CDF  
RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

GERALD G. RICHERT, et al.,

Plaintiffs/Respondents,

vs.

CITY OF TACOMA,

Petitioner.

---

**RESPONDENTS' ANSWER TO CITY OF TACOMA'S PETITION  
FOR REVIEW**

*(Proof of Service Included)*

---

Karen A. Willie, WSBA No. 15902  
Bradley E. Neunzig, WSBA No. 22365  
Terrell Marshall Daudt & Willie PLLC  
936 North 34th Street, Suite 300  
Seattle, Washington 98103  
Telephone: (206) 816-6603  
Facsimile: (206) 350-3528

 ORIGINAL

##

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

The Utility faults the Court of Appeals for relying in its analysis of *res judicata* on selected portions of the *Funk* pleadings, claiming a conflict with precedent. *See Petition*, p. 2, citing *Large v. Shively*, 186 Wash, 490, 58 P.2d 808(1936). In *Shively*, records of the proceedings below were not “pleaded and proved.” *Shively*, at 498. This Court held that making a determination with regard to *res judicata* was error absent a proper record. *Id.* In this case, the Ranchers placed the entire certified record of *Funk* from the State Archives into evidence. CP 1296-2486. Because the entire

---

<sup>3</sup> Three pages printed out from the two websites are attached at Appendix 1 for the Court’s convenience.

record was before the courts and considered, there is no conflict with *Shively* and its progeny and no grounds under RAP 13.4(b) to grant review.

Finally, the Utility’s argument for review based on Division Two’s comment about construing the facts in a light most favorable to the Ranchers is baseless. The change to the opinion was made at the request of the Utility by way of a motion for reconsideration. In its briefing, it admitted that the facts were “not material to the legal issues presented on appeal.” *See Motion for Reconsideration (“Motion”)*, p. 1. It stated that although certain facts were contested the parties had “agreed that there were no material factual disputes regarding the ‘narrow issue’ of the impact of the *Funk judgment*.” *Motion*, p. 3, *citing to* RP (6/8/12) 2:19-23. The two cross-motions for summary judgment dealt with the same facts and the same legal issue—what is the effect of the *Funk* condemnation? Does it bar the Rancher’s lawsuit in its entirety or should the Utility’s affirmative defense based on *Funk* be stricken? Given that there are admittedly no material issues of fact on the narrow issue the trial and appellate courts have decided, it is irrelevant that the appellate court stated it construed the facts in a light most favorable to the Ranchers. No basis exists under RAP 13.4(b) for review by this Court.

### III. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE FACTS

#### A. **The Funk Condemnation was Limited to the Diversion of the Waters of the North Fork and did not Condemn the Ranchers’ Lands**

As is admitted by the Utility and emphasized by Division Two, the *Funk* condemnation addressed two types of takings. *See Petition*, p. 6; *Richert*, 179 Wn. App. at 697-98. The *Funk* Petition is forty-five pages long. CP 3286-3331. It sets out as “Type One” those properties taken in



their entirety because the land would be underwater or have the hydroelectric plant, its flume and electrical lines on it. CP 3286-3325. Type Two properties only involved riparian rights, adjacent to and “appurtenant” to the land along the river. CP 3326-3331. The Rancher’s lands were not taken; only part of their riparian rights were. The price per acre paid for the Type One lands taken in their entirety was \$123.56 per acre while the riparian rights to the flow of the North Fork were conveyed for \$7.95 per acre. *See Richert*, at 698-99; CP 2490. The Petition stated that the “volume” of water would be “diminished.” CP 1382. The trials of the two different property interests were set before different judges. Consistently, the jury instructions were different, with the instructions in the riparian rights trial before Judge Wilson referring to the diminishment of water, lowering of the groundwater table and loss of beneficial annual flooding. CP 1789-1794; 1796-1799; 1863-1876; 1881-1885; 1918-1920; 1921-1925; 1927-1928; 1936-1938; 1942-1943; 1946; 2406-2415. The results of these jury verdicts are best summarized in the September 8, 1923 Decree of Appropriation. CP 2010-2014.

**B. The Condition of the Channel was Known to the Utility when It Added the Damaging Flows**

The Utility relates that the valley has had a long history of flooding quoting to a 2011 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ Study<sup>4</sup> that goes on to state that “the problem has steadily grown worse.” CP 2585. The 2011 Study states that between 1912 and 1941, there were 29 floods in 29 years and now floods occur multiple times a year. *Id.* The channel capacity has dwindled due to the aggradation in the river. In 1941, its capacity was 13,000 cfs, in 1969 it was 11,000 cfs and by 2011 it was only 4,000 cfs.

---

<sup>4</sup> Dated October 2011 and entitled: “Skokomish River Basin Flooding and Sedimentation Baseline.”

*Id.* The Utility, with the United States Geologic Survey, recently found the capacity to be approximately 2,500 cfs. CP 105, 335.

The Utility added 30 cfs to the river in 1988. It then added an additional flow of 60 cfs in 1999. In March of 2008 it added, via a jet valve<sup>5</sup>, 240 cfs to the North Fork. Since the time of the *Funk* condemnation up to 1988 the river had base flows of only 10 cfs. CP 316. This enormous new flow caused access problems and changes to the land so it cannot support crops, hay or Christmas trees. CP 591. The Utility, in briefing to the Ninth Circuit in 2006, admitted that the new flows of 240 cfs would cause overbank flooding in the valley. CP 715-736, n.20. In a recent settlement, the Utility paid the Skokomish Tribe for aggradation in the river and for the flooding and groundwater heightening on their reservation located just downstream of the Ranchers' properties. CP 3009.

**C. Remainderman Damages were not Paid in *Funk*, No Right to Vary the Base Flow of the River was ever Awarded and there has been no Variation to the Baseflow of the River over Time**

The Utility states that in *Funk* it compensated landowner's for all damage to their remaining property interests. *See Petition*, p. 6 *citing* CP 3329-31. The citation is to three pages of the *Funk* Petition which provides no such language.<sup>6</sup> It then states it paid to acquire all riparian rights including "the right to vary water levels." *See Petition*, p.8, *citing to* CP 3764. The citation is to its own Answer in this matter and does not establish the Utility's contention. Next, it points to a Cross-Complaint and petition to intervene as proof of the broad scope of the damages paid by the jury. *See Petition*, pp. 6-7. Its reliance on these two documents was

---

<sup>5</sup> A photograph of the jet valve with a man standing at its base can be found at CP 881.

<sup>6</sup> A copy of the pages are attached to this brief as an Appendix 2 for the court's convenience.

rejected by the appellate court. *See Richert*, 179 Wn. App. at 706, n 5.

The jury instructions only provided for damages due to the removal of the flows of the North Fork. CP 2010-2014. The *Funk* Decree gave the right to “divert the waters of the North Fork” that flowed past the Ranchers’ properties and were “appertaining and appurtenant” to them. CP 3650. If a right is “appurtenant” to the land, it cannot also be a right to the land itself.

The Utility asserts that obtaining the water rights in “fee simple” of the North Fork’s flows in 1923 means that, ninety years later, it can place enormous damaging flows into the river, change its baseflow and destroy the entire valley. At the trial court level, the Ranchers put in the declaration of a water law expert, Gregory S. McElroy. CP 3235-3243. He explained that the term “fee simple” with regard to water rights was a term of art and testified that: “The Court’s use of the term ‘fee simple’ to describe the riparian water rights condemned in *Tacoma v. Funk* does not in any sense connote or imply that other real property interests or rights in the land were being condemned.” CP 3242. No countervailing opinion was ever raised on the issue. The Utility has made other attempts, to no avail, to support its theory that the baseflow of the river has fluctuated over time.<sup>7</sup>

---

<sup>7</sup> The Utility claimed through an expert that it had varied the flows coming out of the dam over time as reflected in its “spill records.” The Ranchers obtained the spill records which only covered the winter months from 1971 to 1995. CP 3261-3262. Twenty-six of the events were in November and December of 1975. From 1980 to 1990, there were no spills and only eight from 1990 to 1995. *Id.*; CP 3246.

At the appellate level, a new argument was advanced that the USGS records provided support for the Utility’s theory that flows varied in the river. A figure was advanced (CP 654) in black and white so the obvious change in baseflow was not apparent. The colored version of the chart clearly shows the baseflow drastically changing in 2008. (A colored copy is provided at Appendix 3 for the Court’s working papers.)

**D. Being in A Floodplain does not Strip away Property Rights**

The Utility asserts that the “Richert parcels are located in the floodway.” *See Petition*, pp. 4-5, *citing to* CP 2544. First, the citation is to a page of the Utility’s expert’s declaration wherein he asserts that only five parcels are in the “floodway” with all the rest being in the “floodplain” of the Skokomish River. CP 254.<sup>8</sup> The Ranchers have 112 parcels, so 107 of them are not in the “floodway.” CP 3217-3219 (parcel numbers). This focus on the floodplain or even the floodway is a revival of an argument abandoned on appeal. It is a fact that the flooding on the river is not natural. CP 2585. This unnatural flooding is somehow seen by the Utility as acceptable if it stays in the floodway or within the floodplain. The floodplain of the valley is the entire valley with its people, homes, barns, roads and animals. CP 3214-3215 (map). It is a mile wide and nine miles long. If the Utility’s assertion were true, anyone with a riparian right would own acres and acres of fee simple land in the countless river valleys throughout this state. This argument is strained and it cannot be revived at this stage in the appellate process. *See Holder v. City of Vancouver*, 136 Wash. App. 104, 107, 147 P.3d 641 (2006).

**E. The Procedural Stance taken by the Utility**

In a motion for reconsideration, the Utility specifically asked Division Two to state that it had not intended to address the parties’ disputed factual contentions. *See Motion*, p. 1. The Utility admitted that these facts were not “material to the legal issues presented on appeal.” *Id.* In response to the Utility’s request, the appellate court stated that it had viewed the facts in a light most favorable to the Ranchers. Given that those facts were not material to the legal issue before the appellate court,

---

<sup>8</sup> A copy of this page is attached at Appendix 4 for the Court’s convenience.

the Utility's claim of prejudice is puzzling. Division Two's words cannot form the basis for review by this Court since there were no material facts at issue and the words are irrelevant.

#### IV. ARGUMENT

##### A. **This Case Involves Simple and Well-Settled Condemnation Law; There is no Conflict with Regard to Riparian Law in Division Two's Decision**

This case is about condemnation law. The narrow issue before the lower courts was the impact of the *Funk* condemnation. The Utility states the law correctly:

Although a condemnation judgment does not bar a subsequent claim "to take or damage a *distinct and separate property right* which was not specifically included in the condemnation proceedings," a condemnor who has paid for the right to "take and damage the specifically described property" cannot be compelled to pay additional compensation for damage to the same property rights.

*See Petition*, p. 17, citing *Great Northern. Railway Co. v. Seattle*, 180 Wash. 368, 373, 39 P.2d 999 (1935) (*emphasis in original*).

The theory of the Utility is that by condemning a portion of the Ranchers' riparian rights it has the right to flood their lands, raise the groundwater level and destroy their fee simple properties. The *Funk* condemnation paid the Ranchers' families \$7.95 an acre for the loss of the flows of the North Fork. Now, all of their agricultural lands are being taken. The finality of the *Funk* decision is not being invaded; distinct and separate property rights of the Ranchers are being invaded. The Utility's argument for review by this Court hinges on its own belief that in condemning "riparian rights" it can flood and destroy fee simple property. Its argument has been rejected by the lower courts and no clarification of

the appellate decision is necessary. The specifically described “property” that the Utility took was the water flow of the North Fork of the river.

Next, the Utility takes the words “water use” from Division Two’s opinion and attempts to build it into a conflict in riparian law. No conflict exists. The appellate court was not discussing riparian law but, rather, condemnation law and the Utility’s *res judicata* motion when it used the words. It was making a distinction between the flows of the North Fork being taken away from the parcels and the current condition of the inundated parcels. It stated that in *Funk*, “the right to take away the use of the Type Two parcels’ water” was condemned, not “the right to invade the Richert’s parcels with water.” *Richert*, at 705. It looked to the *Funk* Petition to discern the scope of the property right taken. It found that the Utility took away the use of the water but it did not obtain the right to overwhelm the Type Two parcels’ with water. *Richert* at 706-707.

In a section entitled: “Concurrence of Identity with Subject Matter,” which relates to one of the elements of *res judicata*, the appellate court stated: “*Funk*’s final judgment dealt with only deprivation of the parcel’s water use, rather than flood or groundwater damage to the parcels themselves.” *Id.* Again, discussing *res judicata* in a section entitled “Concurrence of Identity with Cause of Action,” it stated that in *Funk* the Utility only “condemned the right to deprive the parcel owners of their ability to use water.” In assessing the Ranchers’ current lawsuit, it pointed out that the claim is that the “parcels are being damaged by floods and high water tables, with some land taken in its entirety.” *Richert* at 707-708. No mischaracterization of riparian rights exists in Division Two’s opinion. There is no basis under RAP 13.4(b) for review.

**B. There is no Conflict with *Res Judicata* Precedents and no Significant Issue Exists**

The Utility's second argument for review is based on *Large v. Shively* in which a court evaluated a *res judicata* motion without the record. The case involved a boundary dispute on Hood Canal. Certain portions of two previous matters on the same subject were offered into evidence but the court refused their submission. *See Large*, at 497. With regard to one of the matters, the appellant was not even a party. *Id.* Under these circumstances, it was error for the trial court judge to enter a finding based on *res judicata*. *See Large*, at 489.

In *Lemond v. Dept. of Licensing*, 143 Wn.App. 797, 180 P.3d 829 (2008), the results of a Breathalyzer test were suppressed by a municipal court judge. In a later proceeding before the Department of Licensing, the plaintiff argued that the Breathalyzer results should be suppressed under *res judicata*. She did not present "competent evidence...to prove the precise issues." *Lemond*, at 804. The court stated that to undertake the necessary analysis, the issue resolved in the prior proceeding must be established by competent evidence. *Id. and see e.g., Brodeneck v. Cater's Motor Freight System, Inc.*, 198 Wash. 21, 86 P.2d 766 (1939) (no evidence produced).

As the Utility points out, the courts determine the legal significance of the record, not the parties. *See Petition*, p. 14 citing *Atlantic Casualty Ins. Co. v. Oregon Mutual Ins. Co.*, 137 Wn. App. 296, 302, 153 P.3d 211 (2007). Here, the lower courts analyzed the entire record, primarily relying on the *Funk* Petition, the jury instructions and the Decrees. *See Richert*, at 706, n.5. Both courts considered and then rejected the Utility's argument that a Cross-Complaint and a petition to

intervene should have entirely guided their analysis. *Id.* In this case the entire *Funk* record was before the lower courts. CP 1296-2486. Having the entire record of a prior action incorporated by reference in a complaint allowed the court to examine that file in analyzing a *res judicata* matter in *Marshall v. Chapman's Estate*, 31 Wn.2d 137, 195 P.2d 656 (1948). The Utility's citation to this case as supporting its position is odd given that the entire record was before the lower courts. The facts in this case are not at all similar to *Large* and its progeny and no conflict with *res judicata* law exists within Division Two's decision.

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